

SAN FRANCISCO MUNICIPAL TRANSPORTATION AGENCY CITIZENS' ADVISORY COUNCIL

MINUTES

Thursday, June 6, 2019 Room 7080, Union Square Conference Room 1 South Van Ness Avenue, 7th Floor

> REGULAR MEETING 5:30 P.M.

COUNCIL MEMBERS

Daniel Weaver (Chair), Frank Zepeda (Vice Chair), Neil Ballard, Mark Ballew, LisaMarie Betancourt, Jarie Bolander, Queena Chen, Steve Cornell, Joan Downey, Aaron Leifer, Christopher Man, Daniel Murphy, Susan Vaughan, and Dorris Vincent

> **COUNCIL LIAISON** Roberta Boomer

COUNCIL SECRETARY Keka Robinson-Luqman

ORDER OF BUSINESS

1. Call to Order

Chair Weaver called the meeting to order at 5:36 p.m.

2. Roll Call

CAC members present at Roll Call: Neil Ballard, Jarie Bolander, Queena Chen, Stephen Cornell,

Joan Downey, Aaron Leifer, Christopher Man, Daniel

Murphy, Susan Vaughan, Daniel Weaver, and Frank Zepeda

CAC members absent at Roll Call: Dorris Vincent

CAC members absent with notification: Mark Ballew

CAC members absent without notification: LisaMarie Betancourt

3. Announcement of prohibition of sound producing devices during the meeting.

CAC Secretary Robinson-Luqman made the announcement.

4. Approval of Minutes:

No public comment.

On motion to approve the minutes of April 4, 2019:

ADOPTED: AYES – Neil Ballard, Jarie Bolander, Queena Chen, Stephen Cornell, Joan Downey, Aaron Leifer, Christopher Man, Daniel Murphy, Susan Vaughan, Daniel Weaver, and Frank Zepeda

ABSENT – Mark Ballew, LisaMarie Betancourt, and Dorris Vincent,

5. Report of the Chair (For discussion only)

No report.

6. Public Comment:

Edward Mason provided an update on the commuter shuttle bus program. The San Jose Avenue bus stop has about 30 buses an hour. It creates back-up problems. There is also congestion at 24th and Church streets. Recently, there was a commuter bus boarding passengers in the traffic lane.

Eva Lee stated that she represents the Chinatown Merchants Association. They are against the Chinatown Central Subway station being named after Rose Pak. There are no SFMTA stops named after anyone. This has caused divisiveness in the community. Rose Pak was a bully.

Jenny Zhang stated that it would be offensive to name the Chinatown Central Subway station after Rose Pak. She stated that her aunt had to pay Rose Pak protection fees. Rose Pak cheated to get affordable housing and threatened supervisors.

Ze Xia is strongly against the Chinatown Central Subway station containing the name Rose Pak. Naming it after her does not fit the SFMTA naming policy. The MTA Board should not make decisions against the SFMTA naming policy and what the majority of people want.

Alicia Zhao stated that she hopes that the SFMTA Citizens' Advisory Council will help stop Supervisor Peskin from pursuing the name of Rose Pak for the Chinatown Central Subway station. It is clear from the public comments at the June 4th SFMTA Board meeting that the public are against it. Rose Pak is highly controversial.

Cornelia Ritter has been leaving in Chinatown for seven years and is a frequent Muni rider. She stated that she opposes naming the station after Rose Pak. Public opposition is about the soul of human existence.

David Bu stated that he is against the naming the Chinatown Central Subway station after Rose Pak. There was a rally in Chinatown in support of naming the station the Chinatown station only. Supervisor Peskin told the media he will block the SFMTA budget if they don't pass the resolution.

Sonia Ng stated that she has lived in San Francisco for 46 years. She waited a long time for the Chinatown station and doesn't understand why the SFMTA would put Rose Pak's name on the Chinatown Central Subway station. She did not represent the entire Chinese community.

Council member Dorris Vincent arrived at 5:50 p.m.

Klara Galperin came to the United States of America in 1990. She stated that she is Jewish and knows what the communist party is all about. She has been practicing Falun Gong since 1999. It would be a nice present to not name the Chinatow Central Subway station after Rose Pak.

Chris Kitze has a business in Chinatown. He knows a lot of the merchants and also does the meditation Falun Gong. He started the practice because he was so touched by the people who were being persecuted but they still practiced tolerance. People come to the United States of America for religious freedom but are still treated the same way they were treated in China.

Eric Huang stated that naming the Chinatown Central Subway station has become a political undertaking for special interest groups. Rose Pak caused a lot of divisiveness in the San Francisco Chinese community. The SFMTA should simply use Chinatown for the name of the station. Clear and simple.

Albert Chang believes that the name of the station should be Chinatown station. The name would be straightforward to not confuse tourists.

Doria Liu stated that the San Francisco Board of Supervisors are not representing the will of the Chinese people. Rose Pak relied on communist power to take advantage of and bully the community. In the past two weeks 8,000 San Francisco residents have signed a petition against naming the Chinatown Central Subway station after Rose Pak.

Shan Long stated that she has visited more than 200 businesses in Chinatown and collected more than 150 signatures. They are all opposing naming the Chinatown Central Subway station after Rose Pak. 80 percent of the businesses oppose this legislation. Rose Pak was a bully and everything she did was for her own interests.

Suhuan Luo is against using the name Rose Pak on the Chinatown Central Subway station. The name Chinatown is enough. It should not be replaced by any particular person's name. The name Chinatown represents the past, present, and future. She stated that this past Tuesday, Supervisor Peskin cheated a lot of residents into supporting him including her mother, who was offered \$5, a free t-shirt, and free lunch.

Lijuan Zng has lived in San Francisco for over 30 years. The Citizens' Advisory Council should be vigilante about the infiltration and control of the Communist Chinese regime in San Francisco. Many countries now have become much more aware of the efforts by the Chinese Communist party. Supervisor Peskin said he wants to name the station after Rose Pak because of her contributions to Chinatown. Hitler made major contributions to the German economy but Germany would not honor him because he is a war criminal.

Rui Wang stated that she was really shocked when she heard the Chinatown Central Subway station would be named after Rose Pak. Transportation stops and stations are typically named by geographic names. She doesn't understand why such a clear place needs to be named after this particular person. She collected over 400 petitions from business owners and their staff and submitted them to the SFMTA Board of Directors and the San Francisco Board of Supervisors. 180 shops put a 'support only Chinatown station' sign in their window.

Allen Zeng stated that in the last four weeks, many people took a day off to go to the San Francisco Board of Supervisors and the SFMTA Board of Directors meetings to speak about this issue. If the SFMTA upholds its own policy and names the station Chinatown, no one will be offended. But, if they name it after Rose Pak, there will be many people offended.

Anonymous said speaking about this endangers his life. In 1986, he overheard Rose Pak talking with his boss. She was trying to convince his boss to use a gangster to kill someone.

Shaohong Deng said she has lived in San Francisco for 19 years. Every stop is named after a geographic location. If Chinatown station is named after Rose Pak, future generations will ask who is Rose Pak. She was a lady with a cigar, a vicious look, and a corrupted character.

Suhoa Han said that it is inappropriate to name the Chinatown Central Subway station after Rose Pak. She is quite controversial and many businesses object to this idea. She pushed Chinese communist parties against Falun Gong in San Francisco. She uses truthfulness, compassion, and tolerance and for that she was arrested and put in jail for three years and her son was tortured to death.

Ming Yu stated that he was sentenced to prison for 12 years for practicing the meditation exercise of Falun Gong in China. He came to the United States of America to obtain freedom. Instead of obtaining a kidney transplant in the US, she went to China to get it where organ harvesting for profit is big business. Naming the station for Rose Pak is equivalent to encouraging organ harvesting.

Siaoqiong Ye wondered why Rose Pak went to China to obtain her kidney transplant. The US has the best technology. In China, people don't want to donate their organs because they want to keep their whole body. Please don't name the station after Rose Pak.

Timothy Cross stated that he has been driving Uber for three years in San Francisco and in his experience, traffic is caused by people who want to make fight turns on the green but can't because of pedestrians crossing the street. If the SFMTA is trying to improve traffic flow, they should have no walk signs for pedestrians before the light turns red so that cars can make right turns before the light turns red. He is also in favor of pedestrian scrambles.

Council member Daniel Murphy stated that he believes that the CAC should remind the SFMTA Board of Directors that the CAC supports the SFMTA naming policy. Given the controversial nature of the Rose Pak topic, he suggested that the item at the SFMTA Board of Directors be postponed until the CAC can weigh in at their July 11th meeting.

REGULAR CALENDAR

7. Presentation, discussion, and possible action regarding the Southeast Muni Expansion Project. (Adrienne Heim, Public Information Officer. Explanatory documents include a slide presentation.)

Tracey Lin, Deputy Project Manager, presented the item. She discussed the current transit plan, outreach results, proposed transit plan modifications, and next steps of the project.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

Edward Mason stated that SamTrans is going to implement an express bus down 19th Avenue to go to Palo Alto. He inquired if Muni has had any dialogue with other transit agencies regarding future development. He inquired what the capacity of the T Third line will be. Muni needs to look further into the regional aspect.

Council member Frank Zepeda left at 6:58 p.m.

8. Presentation, discussion, and possible action regarding Public Outreach & Engagement Team Strategy (POETS). (Deanna Desedas, Manager, Public Outreach & Engagement. Explanatory documents include a slide presentation.)

Deanna Desedas, Manager, Public Outreach & Engagement presented the topic. She discussed requirements, accountability, and staff resources of POETS.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

Edward Mason stated that the SFMTA knew of all the problems with the new Siemens light rail vehicles long before they informed the public. Muni lost credibility. He stated that he is disappointed in the LRV4 procurement process.

- 9. Presentation, discussion, and possible action regarding the Engineering, Maintenance and Safety Committee (EMSC) report and recommendations.
- 10. Council Member Information and Agenda Item Requests. (For discussion only)

Sue Vaughan inquired who is responsible for maintaining the glass on the bridge on Fillmore Street over Geary Boulevard because it is shattered.

Sue Vaughan asked how many commuter shuttle buses have placards.

Sue Vaughan asked how many commuter shuttle buses are operating on average on a daily basis.

Queena Chen inquired if there are unified markings for a scramble system, if they all have to be the same type of marking, and if they do, what's the standard for pedestrian scramble crosswalks.

Neil Ballard requested a presentation on fare policy.

ADJOURN- The meeting was adjourned at 8:47 p.m.

Submitted by:

Keka Robinson-Luqman SFMTA CAC – Secretary

Next meeting: Thursday, July 11th at 5:30pm

1 South Van Ness Avenue, 7th Floor, Union Square Conference Room, #7080

ACCESSIBLE MEETING POLICY

The Municipal Transportation Agency Citizens' Advisory Council will meet in the Union Square Conference Room at One South Van Ness Ave. 7th Floor, San Francisco, CA. The closest accessible BART station is the Civic Center Station at United Nations Plaza and Market Street. Accessible MUNI lines serving this location are: Muni Metro Lines J-Church, K-Ingleside, L-Taraval, M-Ocean View, N-Judah and T-Third at Van Ness and Civic Center Stations; F-Market-Wharves; 47-Van Ness; 49-Mission-Van Ness; 6-Haight-Parnassus, 21-Hayes; 9-San Bruno; 7R-Haight-Noriega Rapid; 9R-San Bruno Rapid; and 7-Haight-Noriega. For information about MUNI accessible services call 701.4485.

The meeting room is wheelchair accessible. There is accessible parking available within the Civic Center Underground Parking Garage at the corner of McAllister and Polk Streets, and within the Performing Arts Parking Garage at Grove and Franklin Streets.

To obtain a disability-related accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, or to obtain meeting materials in alternative format, please contact Keka Robinson-Luqman at 415.646.2388. Providing at least 72 hours' notice will help to ensure availability. Written reports or background materials for calendar items are available for public inspection and copying at 1 South Van Ness Ave. 7^{th} Floor during regular business hours and are available on-line at www.sfmta.com/cac. Public comment will be taken on each item before or during consideration of the item.

To assist the City's efforts to accommodate persons with severe allergies, environmental illnesses, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to various chemical based products. Please help the City to accommodate these individuals.

The ringing of and use of cell phones, pagers and similar sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chairman may order the removal from the meeting room of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or use of a cell phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices.

KNOW YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE

Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decision in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review. For more information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance or to report a violation of the ordinance, contact Administrator, by mail to Sunshine Ordinance Task Force, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco CA 94102.4689; by phone at 415 554.7724; by fax at 415 554.7854; or by email at sotf@sfgov.org.

Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Task Force, the San Francisco Public Library and on the City's website at http://www.sfgov.org.

LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE

311 Free language assistance / 免費語言協助 / Ayuda gratuita con el idioma / Бесплатная помощь переводчиков / Trợ giúp Thông dịch Miễn phí / Assistance linguistique gratuite / 無料の言語支援 / 무료 언어지원 / คว"มช่วยเหลือท"งก"ษ"โดยไม่เส"ยค่าใช้ง่าย / Libreng tulong para sa wikang Tagalog

415.646.2388: For free interpretation services, please submit your request 48 hours in advance of meeting./ 如果需要免費口語翻譯,請於會議之前 48 小時提出要求。/ Para servicios de interpretación gratuitos, por favor haga su petición 48 horas antes de la reunión. Para sa libreng serbisyo sa interpretasyon, kailangan mag-request 48 oras bago ang miting.